COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In the Matter of:

THE JOINT PETITION OF KENTUCKY-AMERICAN )
WATER COMPANY, THAMES WATER AQUA )
HOLDINGS GMBH, RWE AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT, ) CASE NO. 2006-00197
THAMES WATER AQUA US HOLDINGS, INC. AND )
AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC. FOR )

APPROVAL OF A CHANGE IN CONTROL OF )
KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY )
RESPONSE

Come RWE Aktiengesellschaft ("RWE"); Thames Water Aqua Holdings GmbH
(“TWAH GmbH”), Thames Water Aqua US Holdings, Inc. (“TWAUSHI”); American Water
Works Company, Inc. (“AWWC”) and Kentucky-American Water Company ("KAWC"),
(collectively “Petitioners”), and for their response to the Commission's Order dated April 16,
2007, state:

1. They disagree with the Commission's conclusion that there is any possibility that
RWE, TWAH GmbH, TWAUSHI, AWWC or KAWC failed to adequately fund AWWC's
pension fund and other post-employment benefit plans during RWE indirect ownership of
AWWC." At all times AWWC funded AWWC's pension and post-employment benefit plans as
required in annual actuarial analyses.

2. In full and complete compliance with ordering paragraph 3 of the Commission's
Order of April 16, 2007, Applicants state that as of December 31, 2002 AWWC's total liability
for pension and other post-retirement benefit plans was $843,899,000, the fair value of its plan
assets for pension and other post-retirement benefit plans was $469,533,000 and the percentage

of its pension and other post-retirement benefit plans that was funded was 55.6%.

! Case No. 2006-00197, Order dated April 16, 2007, p. 26.



As of December 31, 2006, AWWC's total liability for pension and other post-
retirement benefit plans was $1,319,151,389, the fair value of its plan assets for pension and
other post-retirement benefit plans was $859,670,344, and the percentage of its pension and other
post-retirement benefit plans that was funded was 65.2%.

Because the funding level of AWWC's pension and other post-retirement benefit
plans as of December 31, 2006 exceeds the funding level that existed on December 31, 2002,
there is no amount of capital necessary to bring AWWC's plan assets for pension and other post-
retirement benefit plans as of December 31, 2006 to the same percentage level of funding that
existed for AWWC's plan assets and other post-retirement benefits as of December 31, 2002.

3. A copy of a portion of the actuarial analysis prepared for AWWC by Towers
Perrin for its pension and other post-retirement benefit plans as of December 31, 2002, is
attached as Exhibit A and the same for December 31, 2006, as Exhibit B.

4. In response to ordering paragraph 4 of the Commission's Order of April 16, 2007,
attached as Exhibit C are the financial statements of AWWC for the year ending December 31,
2002.

5. Simultaneously herewith Petitioners have filed a Motion for Confidential
Treatment pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001, Section 7, and KRS 61.870, et seq., for confidential
treatment of AWWC's financial statements for December 31, 2006. In addition to that motion,
the financial statements of AWWC for December 31, 2006, are currently in draft form, have not
been approved by AWWC's auditors because no deferred tax asset was utilized by AWWC in its
previous statements to recognize the timing differences between book and tax balance accounts
for impairment charges related to the acquisitions of some regulated and unregulated entities. At

the time of these acquisitions it was not necessary to establish a deferred tax account because



there was no difference in the book and tax value of the assets or liabilities acquired. However,
subsequent to the acquisitions, an impairment to the goodwill book account for the acquired
assets was determined to be appropriate, creating a difference between the book and tax basis for
the acquisitions. This difference requires a deferred tax account on AWWC's 2004 financial
statements and a consideration of that accounting change in determining the impairment to be
entered upon the 2005 and 2006 statements of AWWC.

6. Because the 2006 statements of AWWC are draft in nature, and will in all
probability change, it would be inappropriate for the statements to be made public until they have
been audited.

7. The Commission has previously held that where a draft document is subject to
change and revision, it should not be publicly disclosed or even produced in response to
discovery.2

Additionally, Exhibit C attached verifies the information contained herein in
response to ordering paragraph 3 of the Commission's Order of April 16, 2007, and no additional
confirmation should be required.

8. In response to ordering paragraph 2 of the Commission's Order dated April 16,
2007, Applicants file simultaneously herewith, in counterparts, their acknowledgment,
acceptance and agreement to be bound by the commitments set forth in Appendix A to the

Commission's Order of April 16, 2007.

? An Investigation into the Feasibility and Advisability of Kentucky-American Water Company's Proposed Solution
to Its Water Supply Deficient, Case No. 2001-00117, Order dated October 2, 2006.



WHEREFORE, Petitioners request that the financial statements of AWWC for
December 31, 2006, remain confidential as requested in its Motion filed contemporaneously
herewith.

Respectfully submitted,

Lindsey W. Ingram, Jr.

Robert M. Watt 111

Lindsey W. Ingram III

STOLL KEENON OGDEN PLLC
300 West Vine Street, Suite 2100
Lexington, Kentucky 40507-1801
Telephone No. 859-231-3000
Facsimile No.: 859-253-1093

By: Vi 4 }?/'7 W, /’:’::‘:7,2&::_
Attorneys for RWE Aktiengesellschaft,
Thames Water Aqua Holdings GmbH,
Thames Water Aqua US Holdings, Inc.,
American Water Works Company, Inc., and
Kentucky-American Water Company



CERTIFICATION

This is to certify that a true and accurate copy of the foregoing has been electronically
transmitted to the Public Service Commission on April 26, 2007; that the Public Service
Commission and other parties participating by electronic means have been notified of such
electronic transmission; that, on April 26, 2007, the original and one (1) copy in paper medium
will be hand-delivered to the Public Service Commission, 211 Sower Boulevard, Frankfort,
Kentucky 40601; and that on April 26, 2007, one (1) copy in paper medium will be served upon
the following via U.S. Mail:

Gregory D. Stumbo Leslye M. Bowman

David Edward Spenard David J. Barberie

Laura Rice LFUCG

Office of the Attorney General Department of Law

1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 200 200 East Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 Lexington, Kentucky 40507
david.spenard @ag.ky.gov Ibowman @lfucg.com
dennis.howard @ag.ky.gov dbarberi @lfucg.com

laura.rice@ag.ky.gov

Anthony G. Martin

P.O. Box 1812

Lexington, Kentucky 40588
agmlaw @aol.com

STOLL KEENON OGDEN PLLC
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Atforneys for Jéint Petitioners
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Change in Benefit Obligation
Net benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan participants' contributions
Plan amendments
Actuarial (gain) loss
Acquisitions/(Divestitures)
Curtailments
Settlements
Special termination benefits
Gross benefits paid
less: federal subsidy on benefits paid
Plan merger
Other
Net benefit obligation at end of year

American Water
FAS 158 Financial Statements Disclosure Information as of December 31, 2006
After Purchase Accounting

Summary of Pension Plans

Exhibit |

Exhibit B

Summary of Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

The accumulated benefit obligation for the US pension plans at the end of 2006 was $771,000,000.

Weighted-average assumptions used
to determine EOY benefit obligations
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase
Medical trend

Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Plan participants' contributions
Settlements
Acquisitions/(Divestitures)
Benefits paid
Plan merger
Other
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status

Unrecognized net transition obligation(asset)
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) loss

Net amount recognized

Amounts recognized in the statement of
financial position consist of:

Noncurrent asset

Current liability

Noncurrent liability

Prepaid benefit cost

Accrued benefit liability

Additional minimum liability

Intangible asset

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Net amount recognized

Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income consist of:

Net actuarial loss/(gain)

Prior service cost/(credit)

Transition obligation/(asset)

$100270\06ret othsys\team\12-31-2006 disclosure (fas)\2006 year end disclosure (fas with pa)- clientrev3.xis

2006 2005 2006 2005
869,921,630 779,249,953 $ 427,852,656 420,210,121
24,307,678 26,987,666 11,612,916 13,660,071
49,622,492 47,594,084 24,348,137 25,156,112
- - 1,037,836 1,597,044
507,008 (489,205) (143,750) (18,570,763)
(18,042,296) 46,798,866 (18,882,240) 3,917,503
(1,691,508) (2,377,265) (237,706) .
(619,142) . - .
372,962 890,000 - -
(28,576,692) (28,732,469) (20,693,990) (18,117,432)
N/A N/A 1,400,000 N/A
(2,944,602) - - -
892,857,530 869,921,630 426,293,859 427,852,656
5.90% 5.65% 5.90% 5.65%
4.25% 4.25% N/A N/A
N/A N/A graded from 9% graded from 10%
in 2007 to 5% in in 2006 to 5% in
2011+ 2011+
499,415,644 480,152,759 $ 243,249,418 216,452,038
55,562,408 23,508,681 29,283,845 13,687,973
53,653,606 24,486,673 27,836,442 28,760,616
- - 1,037,836 1,597,044
(30,351,196) (28,732,469) (20,017,659) (17,248,253)
578,280,462 499,415,644 281,389,882 243,249,418
(314,577,068) (370,505,986) $ (144,903,977) (184,603,238)
N/A - N/A 1,576,903
N/A 2,259,569 N/A (16,843,037)
N/A 112,544,244 N/A 58,741,500
(314,577,068) (255,702,173) (144,903,977) (141,127,872)
- N/A $ - N/A
(1,609,420) N/A (31,515) N/A
(312,967,648) N/A (144,872,462) N/A
N/A - N/A -
N/A (255,702,173) N/A (141,127,872)
N/A (2,856,353) N/A -
N/A 1,229,872 N/A -
N/A 1,626,481 N/A -
(314,577,068) (255,702,173) (144,903,977) (141,127,872)
79,955,987 N/A $ 31,309,013 N/A
1,180,603 N/A (15,662,459) N/A
- N/A 1,040,641 N/A
81,136,590 N/A 16,687,195 N/A

HR SERVICES
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A Brief Look at American Water |

The primary mission of American Water is to provide high quality,
reliable water and wastewater service at an affordable price to our
customers while causing minimal impact on the environment in
which we operate.

The bulk of the company’s activities are centered in locally
managed utility subsidiaries that are regulated by the state in which
each operates. These water systems—and in some cases wastewa-
ter systems—are supported by the resources of American Water,
but are essentially independently operated local enterprises that
are an integral part of the communities they serve.

These regulated utility subsidiaries own the assets of the wa-
ter system each operates, but the company also owns subsidiaries
which manage municipal water systems under contract and other
subsidiaries which supply individuals, businesses, and communi-
ties with other water resource management products and services.

The company’s track record of financial success, environmen-
tal compliance and strong customer support is attributable to its
rigorous operating discipline as well as insightful planning, ample
capital investment, experienced managers, a knowledgeable staff,
support for state-of-the-art water quality programs, and respon-
sive customer service. In using those tools successfully for more
than half a century, the company has achieved a standard of per-
formance for our customers that is surpassed nowhere in our in-
dustry.

In 2003, American Water became part of RWE AG, one of the
world's largest utility groups and the third Targest provider of water
and wastewater services in the world. With the support of RWE
and its water subsidiary Thames Water, American Water is well
positioned to meet the demand for investments that increase water
system reach and capacity, preserve precious water supplies, and
deliver water of unquestioned quality to the individuals and busi-
ness that rely on us.

We consider our customers’ reliance on us to be a sacred trust,
and discharging our duties with diligence, skill and integrity is
our highest priority.




American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Transition and Continuity

This report marks a notable transition. On January 10, 2003 Ameri-
can Water Works Company, Inc. ceased to be a publidy traded
corporation, with the acquisition of all the common stock of Ameri-
can Water Works Company, Inc., by RWE AG, one of the world's
largest utility groups.

In this new form, the company will be part of the third-largest
provider of water and wastewater services in the world. The ac-
quisition of American Water, and previously of the much larger
U.K.-based Thames Water, means RWE companies now provide
water service to some 70 million people worldwide. The new or-
ganization will manage former American Water Works Company,
Inc., operating subsidiaries in the U.S. and Canada. As this acqui-
sition itself demonstrates, American Water will continue to par-
ticipate in the consolidation of the U.S. water and wastewater
industry.

As important as this change is to matters such as access to
lower cost capital, a vastly increased pool of financial and techni-
cal resources, and the ability to share-best practices, much of what
has defined American Water will change little if at all. The
company'’s utility subsidiaries will still operate as local compa-
nies, with the same names, the same managers and the same
staff that they had pre-merger. Their operating practices will re-
main focused on providing high quality service while continuously
searching for new ways to improve that service.

Most important, the company’s values will not change. RWE is
an organization very much like American Water. Both companies
put water quality, reliability and affordability at the top of the
priority list. Both recognize that excellence in customer service is
what keeps companies in business. And both have the same de-
manding standards when it comes to methods of operation, best
practices, and a focus on customer well being.

Thus, this transition of American Water to a larger organiza-
tion, one better equipped to deal with future demands on capital
and water quality, is also the continuation of American Water as
an organization of local, customer-oriented water systems com-
mitted to the values that have won the Toyalty of its customers
and made the company the standard of the industry.

Description of the Business

American Water is the premier water service provider in the United
States. In that capacity, the company provides a wide range of
water services to customers and communities throughout the U.S.,
and, now, throughout the entirety of North America. These ser-
vices are delivered by operating subsidiaries that, broadly speak-
ing, fall into one of two categories: regulated utility service and
unregulated products and services.

Regulated Utility Service

The bulk of the company’s activities are centered in locally man-
aged utility subsidiaries that are regulated by the state in which
each operates. These water systems-and in some cases wastewa-
ter systems-are supported by the resources of American Water,
but are essentially local enterprises that are an integral part of the
communities they serve.

These regulated utilities operate community water and waste-
water systems whose assets are wholly owned by the subsidiary,
the common stock of which is, in turn, wholly owned by Ameri-
can Water. The mission of these utility subsidiaries is to provide
high quality, reliable water and wastewater service at an afford-
able price. To do that successfully requires efficient planning and
capital investment, experienced managers, a knowledgeable staff,
support for state-of-the-art water quality programs, and respon-
sive customer service.

In addition to being subject to economic and customer ser-
vice quality regulations prescribed by state regulatory commis-
sions (with the exception of Michigan-American Water Company),
each is also subject to regulation of environmental performance
and water quality by those states and by the federal government.

Currently, operating subsidiaries in this category provide wa-
ter or wastewater service to a population of approximately 9 mil-
lion and account for the bulk of American Water's revenue and
operating income.

Unregulated Products and Services
This second category includes subsidiaries that are subject to mar-
ketplace dynamics.

American Water Services, the company's fee-for-service sub-
sidiary, generated $222 million in revenues during 2002 and has
800 contract dients. It operates 700 water facilities, 300 waste-
water facilities and employs more than 1,300 professionals that
provide service to a population of approximately 6 million in the
United States and Canada. Several of the communities served by
American Water Services are located in states or communities also
served by regulated subsidiaries of American Water further
strengthening vital community relationships.

The resources of American Water Services were considerably
enhanced in 2002 with the integration of Azurix North America
and Azurix Industrial Corp. (Azurix) acquired in November 2001.
The talent acquired from Azurix combined with the municipal ser-
vices experience of American Water Services, allowed the com-
pany to create an organization capable of providing a full range
of water and wastewater management services. These services in-
clude operation and maintenance contracts for municipal and in-
dustrial water and westewater treatment facilities and associated
systems; residuals management services such as cleaning, dredg-

ing, de-watering and disposal solutions for municipal and indus- -

trial residuals with a focus on beneficial reuse; engineering ser-
vices such a design, design/build and consulting services to mu-
nicipal and industrial customers as well as affiliated companies
and underground infrastructure services such as locating, clean-
ing, inspecting, repairing, rehabilitating and maintaining waste-
water collection and water distribution systems.

The market potential for the types of services provided by
American Water Services is significant in both the United States
and Canada. Since market forces determine the fees generated by
these activities rather than a regulatory process, revenue growth
is limited only by a company’s effectiveness in the marketplace
and the value that municipalities, industries and businesses place
on service quality, financial strength and technical competence.
On all these measures, American Water Services has a proven and
proud history of success.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Capital Spending

aetvatthty subsadiary of American Warer prenarss 1 plas
tal muum"i”'r Lefevated o the cost ob ivedtmen s v a e gua
Hy ‘,l',v‘,Hr’a‘-()(—‘ﬂ:;’)pl*/ inibiatives, aperational mmoroyerionts, svs-
S rowth, requiatory compliance, and intrastriacture eplace-
aents, The 3ctudal acpenditures recorded 11 any
pver. are intluenced by many facars m(;luqu e ning of re-
guited governmental approvals, weather, and .2 dvadaninty o
iabor, sguipment and matenals.

In 7007 investments in new fachities totated 5456 mitlion,
20% above the 2001 construction expendibies ¢f 5331 nuliios
This increase comelates dosely with the
st nelal i ¢

SYSLRITS

JOdr, NOW-

OF e company,

Toneny Wt

= Source-of-supply improvements accounted tor aporoximaiely
8% of construction expenditures in 2002, Projects included
the canstruction of new groundwater supplies in ~\\.11m Fna and
Anthem, Arizona, Newburgh, Indiana; Clovis, New Mexico, and
Ocean City, New Jersey.

A edustrial supply and detivery aetwork is under consire
rion in Hopewell, Virginm. Sigmmncant progress was macde in
the construction of 4 new Lake Michigan o ael and

sumg station for the Cary, Tndiane productis

s sestiments in water treatment and pumping facilities com-
er about 13% and investments in general structures and
r»‘qu:;n ent accounted for 16% of the 2002 consiriction ex-
penditures. Notable projects that were substantially completed
in 2002 include treatment plant renovations and expansions
in village, California; Honolulu, Hawaii; Streator, IHlinois;
Monterey, California; and Vardley, Pennsylvania.

Major projects in progress as of the end of 2002 included: the
Anthem, Arizana Water & Wastewater Campus Phase 3 expan-
sion; the Swimming River Tredatinent Facility Improvements
serving Monmouth, New Jersey; the Oak Clen Reqional Water
Treatment Facility in Howell Township, New Jersey; the Clarion,
Pennsylvania Water Treatment Facility; Phase IT of the Streator,
IMinois Water Treatment Facility; and improvements to the Ster-
ling, [linois and Charleston, West Virginia water treatment
facilities.

= Improvements to transmission and distribution facilities ac-
counted for approximately 41% of construction expenditures
last year and were spread across a large number of service
areas. Additionally, the routine installation of services, meters
and hydrants accounted for 17% of the 2002 construction ex-
penditures. These projects improve existing service, provide
service to new areas, and aflow full utilization of existing sup-
ply and treatment facilities between neighboring systems.

Preminent projects include continuing regionatization efforts
in Jefferson, Monroe and Pike Counties, Pennsylvania and in
Mercer and Summiers Counties, West Virginia. Other major dis-
tribution/transmission projects, to improve system hydraulics

or 2phance system growth, were completed m Scott County,

£ 5t Charles County. St Louis County and loniin, Mis-

outl; and Stort Hilts and Monmou'h County, New Jersey. Dis-

dnhion sterage 1anks vere constracted in Anlhem, Arizona;

;»mm‘emy, Calitornia; Sacramento, Cahtorma; Jetferson City

Missouri; Limerick, Pennsylvania; and Huntington, West Vir-
Gina.

]

Kentt

= Capital expenditures for non-utility property are made prima-
rily for equipment and office spare used by Armn( n Water
Works Service Company. Spending in this category decreased
by 55.5 million in 2002 cormpared with 2001, and renresents
axpenditures for the continued consolidation of customer and

nnancal servicoy,

Before committing to capital expenditures for improving, ex-
panding or replacing facilities orinfrastructure, the company makes
acomprehensive esaluation of all aspects of public water supply
This process includes projection of future water demands, evalua-
fion of source water supply reliability, adequacy of water treat-
ment faolities and distribution systems, and the potential for re-
gional water supply solutions and acquisitions.

In 2002, comprenensive planning studies werse commissioned
tor the ten mregrated systems comprising Pannsylvania’s service
areas in Luzerme and Lackawanna Coundes; the Alexandria and
Prince Withiam service areas iy Vigginia, the Evye e County, Hun
tington and Montgoirery service areas in West Virginia; and the
West Lafayeite service .f.xea. in Indiana. Studies were already un-
derway for subsidiaries in California, Indiana, Kentucky, New Jer-
<oy, New Mexico, New York, Pennsylvania, Virginia and West Vir-
ginia. These continuing studies encompass 19 service areas.

The company expects that requlatory authorities will approve
rate requests necessitated hy the capital cost of construction
projects.

A Culture of Compliance with Environmental Regulations

It scarcely need be said that American Water's policy is to be in
total compliance with all environmental requlations, especially
rules regarding drinking water, since the company’s compliance
record is outstanding and its commitment to excellence goes be-
yond simply meeting regulatory requirements. In fact, American
Water has long been a partner with the United States Environ-
mental Protection Agency, the EPA, in the research and develop-
ment of emerging water quality standards and testing.

That commitment to excellence is shared by RWE/Thames Water
whose dedication to water quality and environmental protection
is equally scrupulous.

In 2002, the company's compliance with drinking water health
standards and wastewater discharge standards was rated at 99.99%
for the regulated utility subsidiaries and at 99.94% for water sys-
tems managed by American Water Services. American Water also
continues to be a leader in achieving the more stringent stan-
dards contained in the voluntary EPA Partnership for Safe Water.
Awards from EPA have been received by 77% of American Water
plants, compared to 1% for the rest of the industry. Of American’s
other plants, 9% are awaiting information on their award, and




the others are new plants. Since qualifications for the award re-
quire accumulation of two year's data, approximately one-half of
those plants will be able to qualify for the award during 2003 and
the other one-half in 2004.

American Water's commitment to regulatory compliance and
environmental protection are identical in many ways to Thames
Water's regulatory compliance and environmental protection pro~
grams. As part of RWE/Thames Water, American Water will be in
an even stronger financial position, with even more technical ex-
pertise, to address the more stringent regulations that will emerge
throughout this decade.

» Participating in regulatory development

The company continues to be an active participant in the EPA regu-
latory development process, and has hosted expert workshops at
its Corporate Center to share knowledge with the EPA. The com-
pany also shares its operating knowledge and expense data with
health authorities to assist them in protecting public health and
the environment in the most efficient way possible.

Thames Water intends to add to this knowledge base by fur-
nishing research information gathered during many years of op-
eration, water quality testing and its compliance with water qual-
ity standards around the world.

= Best Practices

RWE/Thames Water is a world leader in setting operating perfor-
mance standards for water service systems and, like American
Water, takes pride in using best practices as its operating norm.

For its part, American Water adheres to the same demanding
standards: Waste residuals generated at American Water’s drink-
ing water and wastewater treatment plants are properly disposed,
in compliance with permits. Discharges to streams comply with
permit limits, and full disclosure is made if a deviation occurs. For
many drinking water treatment plants, the residuals are being
approved for beneficial use on farms, roadways, and in composting
operations, thereby reducing disposal costs and preserving valu-
able landfill capacity. All chemicals are handled in the appropri-
ate manner to prevent exposure to employees, andto prevent ac-
cidental releases to the environment. If such releases were to oc-
cur, the proper government agencies would be immediately noti-
fied and the material cleaned up. These practices are fully sup-
ported by Thames Water and will continue in the future.

Emerging Federal Environmental Regulation

In 1974, Congress passed the Safe Drinking Water Act mandating
national health standards and charging the Environmental Pro-
tection Agency with its enforcement. An amendment to the Act,
passed in 1996, requires the EPA to promulgate additional stan-
dards in furtherance of the Act, which it has done.

= Arsenic Levels

One of the new standards, adopted by the EPA in 2001, limits the
arsenic level in drinking water to 10 parts per billion. That stan-
dard goes into effect in 2006. Studies began in 2002 to develop
plans to phase in needed capital investment over time.

= Disinfection Byproducts

Lower permissible limits for the byproducts of disinfection in wa-
ter treatment took effect in 2002, as did more stringent perfor-
mance standards for the treatment of surface water. The operat-
ing systems of American Water's regulated subsidiaries were in
compliance with these new standards prior to the deadline.

= Qther Anticipated Regulations

In 2003, the EPA also plans to propose new regulations to assure
water quality by controlling cross connections throughout water
distribution systems, by requiring even greater disinfection of sur-
face waters, and by lowering disinfection byproduct limits still
further. These new regulations are slated to go into effect in stages
from 2005 through 2008.

The effect of new and anticipated regulations on
American Water

= Removal of radon will be necessary at a few of American Water's
sites by the 2007 deadline. However, most states are expected
to adopt alternate plans designed to reduce indoor air radon
levels, and require treatment only of ground water with ex-
tremely high radon levels.

= The filter backwash recydling rule is expected to impact only
one site, which has until 2006 to comply.

= The ground water disinfection rule will have virtually no im-
pact since American Water voluntarily disinfects ground water
at all but one site now and that site is scheduling disinfection
in 2003.

= The distribution system protection rule is not likely to affect
capital needs, but the required protection program will increase
operational costs at some sites.

= Greater disinfection of surface waters will Tikely result in instal-
lation of UV for some systems.

= Lowering of disinfection byproducts will increase operating
costs and require some improvements to treatment facilities.
The company expects to have several years in which to imple-
ment these changes.




American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

State Economic Regulation

Commissions in 18 states regulate the company's utility subsid-
iaries.

These utility commissions have broad authority to establish
water rates, prescribe service standards, and approve utility rules
and regulations. In most states, the commission’s approval is re-
quired for long-term financing programs, transactions between a
utility and affiliated interests, reorganizations, mergers and ac-
quisitions. The jurisdiction of each commission is prescribed by
state legislation and varies from state to state.

= The Rate Making Process

The purpose of this regulatory process is to set rates that will cover
the reasonable operating costs of providing quality service to cus-
tomers and which will also allow the utility the opportunity to
earn a fair return on the investment necessary to provide that ser-
vice. A rate proceeding generally focuses on four issues:

» The investment in facilities that provide a public service

* The operating cost and taxes associated with providing the
service

» The capital costs of funds used to provide the facilities

= The tariff design which allocates revenue requirements equita-
bly across the customer base

Ordinarily, it is a utility that initiates a rate adjustment pro-
ceeding. After receiving such a rate request and appropriate in-
vestigation by commission staff and interveners, public hearings
are held. These hearings, which are economic and service quality
fact-finding proceedings, are typically conducted in a trial-like
setting where ev}idence is submitted, subject to cross examina-
tion. The facts developed in these hearings form the basis for a
commission decision.

Since economic regulation deals with competing, and often
conflicting, public interests and policy goals, the rate setting pro-
cess is typically complex and lengthy. As result, the management
of a utility files a rate adjustment request that will reflect the cost
of providing service at the time the rates are likely to become
effective, thus offsetting the adverse financial impact of regula-
tory lag-or at least attempting to do so.

Of the various methods of achieving this result, the forward
looking test year seems to be one of the more effective. At least
16 states employ a future test year or recognition of known and
measurable changes for some period beyond a historic test year.
State regulators allow a variety of mechanisms to achieve similar
results, however; here are several examples:

= American Water subsidiaries in three states have received rate
orders allowing recovery of interest and depreciation expense
related to the period from the time a major construction project
is placed in service until new rates, which reflect the cost of
the project, are placed into effect.

= Nine subsidiaries now recover a return on utility plant before it
is in service instead of capitalizing an allowance for funds used
during construction.

= Six subsidiaries have implemented staged rate increases over
several years reflecting additional annual investments and ex-
penses approximately when they are incurred and reducing
the frequency of general rate increase requests.

= Four states allow utility subsidiaries to recover certain costs of
system infrastructure replacement without the necessity of fil-
ing a full rate proceeding. Since infrastructure replacement is
a significant element of capital expenditures made by subsid-
iaries, such programs can reduce regulatory lag and increase
the time between full rate cases. Legislation has been drafted
and proposed bills are being filed in three additional states in
2003 authorizing infrastructure replacement surcharges.

= Seven states permit a form of rate design known as single tar-
iff pricing. Under this concept, the state sets similar rates for
service to customers of subsidiaries with multiple service dis-
tricts within a state. This approach simplifies administration
and rate proceedings. This concept allows fixed costs to be
spread over a larger customer base thus mitigating the ad-
verse rate impact of making needed capital improvements. It
also allows more flexibility in the timing of utility subsidiary
financing.

» From the beginning of 2002 through January of 2003, regula-
tory commissions authorized rate increases for 11 subsidiaries
that total $31.1 million annually. The driving force for price
increases was obtaining a return on the additional investment
the operating companies have made in essential water service
facilities. The company expects this pattern of rate increase
requests to continue for the foreseeable future, given the need
for capital investments to improve and replace water utility
infrastructure and to comply with increasing demanding wa-
ter quality requirements.

» Recovery of Increased Security Costs

After the tragic events of September 11, 2001, system operating
companies reviewed existing security measures designed to pro-
tect sources of supply and treatment and distribution facilities,
and took appropriate action to increase the security of this essen-
tial infrastructure.

These operating companies have also implemented plans to
obtain timely and appropriate recovery of the increased costs as-
sociated with enhanced security. These plans differ from state to
state; generally, however, most seek security cost recovery in pend-
ing rate proceedings, or in the use of surcharge mechanisms, or
defer security related costs for probable recovery in subsequent
rate proceedings. Most or all of the increased security costs have
been approved as part of rate structures in Iowa, Ohio, Virginia
and New York.

In all states, operating companies are taking appropriate mea-
sures to protect the confidentiality of security-related information
in the regulatory process.




Regulated Utility Operations
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Recognition

The former leaders of American Water Works Company, Tnc.-
Marilyn Ware, chairmian, James Barr, president, and the mem-
bers of the Board of Directors-have stepped aside, but have
feft in place an organization staffed-and equipped to meet the
chaflenges of tm: futire. The peopie of American Water and
RWE are grateful for they inestimable contributions and thei
insightful leadership thit quided this organization so ably for
S0 Many years.

April 15, 2003
Voorhees, New Jeisey
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American Water served more than 15 million people in
27 states and 3 Ganadian provinces at the end of 2002.

British
Columbia

Alberta
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Report of Independent Accountants

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
American Water Works Company, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and the related consolidated statements of income and compre-
hensive income and of retained earnings, of cash flows, of capi-
talization and of common stockholders” equity present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of American Water
Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies at December 31,
2002 and 2001, and the resulis of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s man-
agement; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi-
nancial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audjits
of these statements in accordance with auditing standards gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America, which require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-

statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial state-
ment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
able basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations, and of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets, as of January 1, 2002.

Wuf

February 6, 2003




Consolidated Financial Statements of
American Water Works Company, Inc.
And Subsidiary Companies

For the Years Ended
December 31, 2002
and December 31, 2001




Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Dollars in thousands)

At December 31, 2002 2001
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Utility plant - at original cost less accumulated depreciation $6,178,317 $5,458,909
Utility plant acquisition adjustments, net 219,821 68,916
Nonutility property, net of accumulated depreciation 93,466 94,149
Total property, plant and equipment 6,491,604 5,621,974
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27,503 19,691
Utility customer accounts receivable 118,328 105,101
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (3,400) (2.860)
Unbilled revenues 85,639 86,065
Other receivables, net 69,190 59,724
Materials and supplies 33,347 32,281
Deferred vacation pay 9,977 11,422
Other 23,114 19,164
Total current assets 363,698 330,588
Regulatory and other long-term assets
Regulatory asset - income taxes recoverable through rates 213,584 217,330
Other investments 30,963 39,956
Debt and preferred stock expense 47,271 45,882
Deferred pension expense 37,904 30,712
Deferred postretirement benefit expense 8,859 9,318
Deferred security costs 32,444 7,058
Deferred business services project expenses 40,464 36,311
Deferred insurance expense 11,340 4,998
Deferred tank painting costs 12,957 16,585
Restricted funds 33,165 8,570
Goodwill 253,352 136,488
Intangible assets 64,500 23,400
Other 76,278 77,929
Total regulatory and other long-term assets 863,081 654,537
Total assets $7,718,383 $6,607,099




American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

2002 2001
Capitalization and Liabilities
Capitalization
Common stockholders’ equity $1,801,921 $1,758,018
Preferred stacks called for redemption - 11,673
Preferred stocks of subsidiaries with mandatory redemption requirements 28,150 30,474
Preferred stocks of subsidiaries without mandatory redemption requirements 5,708 7,268
Long-term debt
American Water Works Company, Inc. 169,000 297,000
Subsidiaries 3,301,751 2,253,019
Total capitalization 5,306,530 4,357,452
Current liabilities
Short-term debt 394,712 414,083
Current portion of long-term debt 197,838 166,087
Accounts payable 51,461 67,996
Taxes accrued, including federal income 10,549 21,756
Interest accrued 50,003 43,015
Accrued vacation pay 10,125 11,577
Other 129,097 100,220
Total current liabilities 843,785 824,734
Regulatory and other long-term liabilities
Advances for construction 303,235 230,801
Deferred income taxes 647,051 624,449
Deferred investment tax credits 35,527 38,633
Accrued pension expense 85,522 62,355
Accrued postretirement benefit expense 14,185 13,808
Accrued insurance expense 11,981 5,020
Other 38,039 35,987
Total regulatory and other Tong-term liabilities 1,135,540 1,011,053
Contributions in aid of construction 432,528 413,860
Commitments and contingencies - -
Total capitalization and liabilities $7,718,383 $6,607,099

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income and of Retained Earnings

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the vears ended December 31, 2002 2001
Consolidated Income and Comprehensive Income
Operating revenues $1,715,173 $1,438,887
Operating expenses
Operation and maintenance 927,189 664,549
Depreciation and amortization 230,112 185,211
General taxes 141,002 129,533
1,298,303 979,293
Operating income 416,870 459,594
Other income (deductions)
Interest (227,295) (192,522)
Allowance for other funds used during construction 9,072 4,905
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 5,158 4,043
Amortization of debt expense (2,877) (2,763)
Preferred dividends of subsidiaries (2,7119) (2,985)
RWE acquisition expense (6,439) (9,992)
Gain on sale of operating systems 50,709 4,820
Gain on other investments, net 9,714 5177
Gain on sale of land 15,851 4,969
Other, net (655) (3.439)
(149,481) (187,787)
Income before income taxes 267,389 271,807
Provision for income taxes 123,004 110,324
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 144,385 161,483
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 2,679 -
Net income 147,064 161,483
Dividends on preferred stocks 146 584
Net income to common stock 146,918 160,899
Other comprehensive income loss, net of tax
Unrealized loss on securities (5,991) (16,187)
Redlassification adjustment for (gain) loss included in net income 7,129 (3.158)
Additional minimum pension lability (7,136) -
Foreign currency transiation adjustment 241 -
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (5,757) (19,345)
Comprehensive income S 141,161 S 141,554
Average shares of basic common stock outstanding 100,050 99,465
Earnings per average common share outstanding:
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 144 $ 1.62
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 0.03 -
Basic S 1.47 S 1.62
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 143 $ 1.62
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 0.03 -
Diluted S 1.46 3 1.62
Consolidated Retained Earnings
Balance at January 1 $1,137,772 $1,069,486
Add: net income 147,064 161,483
Preferred stock redemption premium (62) -
Gain on treasury stock - 801
1,284,774 1,231,770
Deduct: dividends paid
Preferred stock 32 128
Preference stock 114 456
Common stock - $.98 per share in 2002,
$.94 per share in 2001 98,041 93,414
98,187 93,998
Balance at December 31 $1,186,587 $ 1,137.772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 147,064 § 161,483
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization 230,112 185,211
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (2,679) -
Gain on sale of operating systems (50,709) (4,820)
Gain on sale of other investments (22,466) (5,177)
Loss on write down of other investments 12,752 -
Gain on sale of land (15,851) (4,127)
Provision for deferred income taxes 60,218 30,980
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 15,749 10,582
Allowance for other funds used during construction (9,072) (4,905)
Employee benefit expenses greater (less) than funding 3,092 (49)
Employee stock plan expense 4,479 4,808
Deferred regulatory costs (34,483) (44,415)
Amortization of deferred charges 17,146 15,986
Other, net (13,101) 1,094
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions and dispositions
Accounts receivable (29,959) (31,963)
Unbilled revenues (859) (2,187)
Other current assets (6,846) (1,125)
Accounts payable (16,256) 4,907
Taxes accrued, including federal income (13,090) (4.759)
Interest accrued 8,522 374
Other current liabilities 29,170 15,714
Net cash from operating activities 312,933 327,612
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Construction expenditures (456,382) (380,656)
Allowance for other funds used during construction 9,072 4,905
Acquisitions (898,047) (214,378)
Proceeds from sale of assets 168,225 23,745
Removal costs from property, plant and equipment retirements (14,655) (16,639)
Restricted funds (33,165) (227)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,224,952) (583,250)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 1,157,101 457,997
Proceeds from common stock 1,586 36,082
Purchase of common stock for treasury (36) (932)
Net borrowings (repayments) under short-term debt agreements (11,768) 1,904
Advances and contributions for construction, net of refunds 92,791 32,348
Debt issuance costs (8,034) (1,114)
Repayment of long-term debt (199,372) (182,251)
Redemption of preferred stocks (14,250) (3.278)
Dividends paid (98,187) (93,998)
Net cash from financing activities 919,831 246,758
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,812 (8,880)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 19,691 28,571
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 $ 27,503 $ 19,691

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Consolidated Statement of Capitalization

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

At December 31, 2002 2001
Common Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock - $1.25 par value, autharized 300,000,000 shares
outstanding 100,091,056 shares in 2002 and 100,016,273 shares in 2001 $ 125,114 § 125,020 |
Paid-in capital 490,701 489,868
Retained earnings 1,186,587 1,137,772
Accumulated other comprehensive income 201 5,958
Unearned compensation - (539)
Treasury stock at cost - 16,111 shares in 2002 and 1,891 shares in 2001 (682) (61)
1,801,921 1,758,018
At December 31, 2002, common shares reserved for issuance in connection with the
Company's stock plans were 80,865,863 shares for the Stockholders Rights Plan, 1,641,852
shares for the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, 565,493 shares for the
Employees’ Stock Ownership Plan and 532,381 shares for the Savings Plan for Employees.
Up to 4,234,367 shares of common stock may be issued under the 2000 Stock Award
and Incentive Plan, of which approximately 3,300,000 shares were available to be granted
at December 31, 2002.
Preferred Stocks With Mandatory Redemption Requirements:
. Cumulative preferred stock - $25 par value, authorized 1,770,000 shares
8.5% series (non-voting) - -
Preferred Stocks Without Mandatory Redemption Requirements:
(A1l shares redeemed March 1, 2002)
Cumulative preferred stock - $25 par value
5% series (one-tenth of a vote per share), 101,777 shares outstanding in 2001 - 2,544
Cumulative preference stock - $25 par value, 750,000 shares authorized in 2001
5% series (non-voting), outstanding 365,158 shares - 9,129
Cumulative preferential stock - $35 par value, authorized 3,000,000 shares,
no oufstanding shares - -
- 11,673
Preferred Stocks of Subsidiaries:
Dividend rate
3.9% to less than 5% 3,860 4,444
5% to less than 6% 3,555 4,637
6% to less than 7% 688 1,365
7% to less than 8% 1,854 3,094
8% to less than 9% 20,950 21,250
9% to less than 10% 2,951 2,952
33,858 37,742

Preferred stock agreements of certain subsidiaries require annual sinking fund payments in
varying amounts and permit redemption at various prices at the option of the subsidiaries
on thirty days notice, or in the event of involuntary liquidation, at par value plus accrued
dividends. Sinking fund payments for the next five years will amount to $614 in 2003,
$614 in 2004, $614 in 2005, $588 in 2006 and $438 in 2007.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Current
Maturities 2002 2001
Long-Term Debt of American Water Works Company, Inc.:
7.41% Series C debentures, due May 1, 2003 $ 81,000 $ - ..§ 81,000
6.28% Series D debentures, due July 2, 2003 45,000 - 45,000
6.32% Series D debentures, due July 2, 2004 - 15,000 15,000
7.02% Senior Note, due August 1, 2005 2,000 4,000 6,000
4.92% Senior Note, due November 6, 2006 - 150,000 150,000
128,000 169,000 297,000
Long-Term Debt of Subsidiaries:

Interest rate
1% to less than 2% 1,346 127,531 25,363
2% to less than 3% 174 4,627 63
3% to less than 4% 42 2,453 314
4% to less than 5% 481 1,078,187 155,295
5% to less than 6% 10,532 690,954 487,563
6% to less than 7% 17,240 566,271 649,658
7% to less than 8% 1,142 546,798 588,571
8% to less than 9% 1,100 91,000 99,103
9% to less than 10% 28,300 150,111 194,189
10% to less than 11% 8,500 41,000 50,371
68,857 3,298,932 2,250,490
Capital leases 981 2,819 2,529
69,838 3,301,751 2,253,019
$197,838 $5,306,530 $ 4,357452

Maturities of long-term debt of subsidiaries, induding sinking fund requirements, during
the next five years will amount to $69,838 in 2003, $41,279 in 2004, $59,731 in 2005,
$1,072,101 in 2006 and $84,956 in 2007.

Long-term debt of subsidiaries is substantially secured by utility plant and by a pledge
of certain securities of subsidiaries and affiliates.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Common Stockholders’ Equity

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Accumulated

Other Common

Common Stock Paid-in Retained  Comprehensive Unearned Treasury Stock Stockholders

Shares Par Value Capital Earnings Income Compensation Shares At Cost Equity

Balance at December 31, 2000 98,819,845  $123,525  $454,568 $1,069,486 $25,303 $(359) 129,216 $(2.846) $1,669,677
Netincome - - - 161,483 - - - - 161,483
Dividend reinvestment 240,350 300 6,963 - - - - - 7.263
Stock purchase 913,894 1,142 26,437 - - - - - 27,579
Incentive plan 42,184 53 1,187 - - (180) - - 1,060
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities, net - - - - (19,345) - - - (19.345)
Treasury stock - - 713 801 - - (127325) 2,785 4,299

Dividends:
Preferred stocks - - - (584) - - - - (584)
Common stock - - - (93,414) - - - - (93.414)
Balance at December 31, 2001 100,016,273 125,020 489,868 1,137,772 5,958 (539) 1,891 (61) 1,758,018
Net income - - - 147,064 - - - - 147,064
Incentive plan 74,783 94 833 - - 539 - — 1,466
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities, net -~ - - - 1,138 - - - 1,138
Treasury stock - - - - - - 14,220 (621) (621)
Preferred stock redemption premium - - - (62) - - - - (62)
Additional minimum pension liability, net - - - - (7.136) - - - (7,136)
Foreign currency translation - - - - 241 - - - 241
Dividends:

Preferred stocks - - - (146) - - - - (146)
Common stock - - - (98,041) - - - = (98,041)
Balance at December 31, 2002 100,091,056 $125,114 $490,701 $1,186,587 $201 § - 16,111 $(682)$1,801,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Notes to Financial Statements

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Note 1: Organization and Operation
American Water Works Company, Inc. through its regulated and
unregulated subsidiaries provides water and wastewater service
in the United States of America and Canada. As public utilities,
the requlated subsidiaries function under rules and regulations
prescribed by state regulatory commissions. The Company pro-
vides water and wastewater management services through its un-
regulated subsidiary, American Water Services. In addition, Ameri-
can Water Resources is a wholly-owned subsidiary whose func-
tion is to primarily invest in water and wastewater related prod-
ucts and services.

The Company has identified Regulated Utility Services and
Unregulated Services as its two reportable segments.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
parent company and all of its subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts
and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. The operating
tesults related to the acquisition of the water and wastewater as-
sets of Citizens Communications Company have been incduded in
the consolidated statement of income since the completion of
the acquisition on January 15, 2002. The operating results of Azurix
North America and Azurix Industrials Corp. have been included in
the consolidated statement of income since the completion of
the acquisition on November 7, 2001.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of con-
tingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Regulation

The utility subsidiaries have incurred various costs and received vari-
ous credits which have been reflected as regulatory assets and i
abilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. Accounting
for such costs and credits as regulatory assets and liabilities is in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
71 “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (SFAS
71). This statement sets forth the application of generally accepted
accounting principles for those companies whose rates are estab-
lished by or are subject to approval by an independent third-party
regulator. Under SFAS 71, utility companies defer costs and credits
on the balance sheet as requlatory assets and liabilities when it is
probable that those costs and credits will be recognized in the rate
making process in a period different from the period in which they
would have been reflected in income by an unregulated company.
These deferred regulatory assets and liabilities are then reflected in
the income statement in the period in which the same amounts are
reflected in the rates charged for service.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Additions to utility plant and replacements of retirement units of
property are capitalized. Costs include material, direct labor and

such indirect items as engineering and supervision, payroll taxes
and benefits, transportation and an allowance for funds used dur-
ing construction. The costs incurred to acquire and internally de-
velop computer software for internal use are capitalized as a unit
of property. Repairs, maintenance and minor replacements of prop-
erty are charged to current operations. The cost of property units
retired in the ordinary course of business plus removal cost (less
salvage) is charged to accumulated depreciation. The cost of prop-
erty, plant and equipment is generally depreciated using the
straight-line method over the estimated service lives of the as-
sets. The depreciation rates, based on the average balance of de-
preciable property, were 2.98% in 2002, 2.64% in 2001 and
2.54% in 2000. .

Non-utility property consists primarily of buildings and equip-
ment utilized by American Water Works Service Company which
provides various services to affiliated companies and by American
Water Services in its unregulated management services business.
This property is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated use-
ful lives of the assets, ranging from three to 40 years.

Utility plant acquisition adjustments include the difference
between the purchase price of utility plant and its original cost
(less accumulated depreciation) and are generally being amor-
tized over a period of 40 years.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially all of the Company's cash is invested in interest bear-
ing accounts. The Company considers all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarily of investment
grade commercial paper, bank certificates of deposit and United
States Government securities. Cash equivalents are stated at cost
plus accrued interest which approximates market value.

Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies are stated at the lower of average purchased
cost and net realizable value.

Regulatory Assets

The Company has recorded a regulatory asset for the additional
revenues expected to be realized as the tax effects of temporary
differences previously flowed through to customers reverse. These
temporary differences are primarily related to the difference be-
tween book and tax depreciation on property placed in service
before the adoption by the regulatory authorities of full normal-
ization for rate making purposes.

The regulatory asset for income taxes recoverable through rates
is net of the reduction expected in future revenues as deferred
taxes previously provided, attributable to the difference between
the state and federal income tax rates under prior law and the
current statutory rates, reverse over the average remaining service
lives of the related assets. :

Debt expense is amortized over the Tives of the respective is-
sues. Call premiums on the redemption of long-term debt, as well
as unamortized debt expense, are deferred and amortized to the
extent they will be recovered through future service rates. Expenses
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of preferred stock issues without sinking fund provisions are am-
ortized over 30 years from date of issue; expenses of issues with
sinking fund provisions are charged to operations as shares are
retired.

Pension expense in excess of the amount contributed to the
pension plans is deferred by certain subsidiaries. These costs will
be recovered in future service rates as contributions are made to
the pension plan.

Postretirement benefit expense in excess of the amount recov-
ered in rates through 1997 has been deferred by certain subsid-
faries. These costs are now recognized in the rates charged for
water service and will be fully recovered over a 20-year period
ending in 2012 as authorized by the regulatory authorities.

The cost of additional security measures that were implemented
to protect facilities after the terrorist attacks on September 11,
2001 has been deferred by certain subsidiaries. These costs are
recognized in the rates charged for water service by certain sub-
sidiaries, and for others are being deferred as it is expected that
these costs will be recovered in the rates charged for utility ser-
vice in the future.

Deferred business services project expenses consist of
reengineering and start-up activities for consolidated customer
and shared administrative service centers that began operations
in 2001. These costs are recognized in the rates charged for water
service by certain subsidiaries, and for others are being deferred
as it is expected that these costs will be recovered in the rates
charged for utility service in the future.

Tank painting costs are generally deferred and amortized to
current operations on a straight-line basis over periods ranging
from 4 to 20 years, as authorized by the reqgulatory authorities in
their determination of rates charged for service.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets and goodwill are associated with the Citizens
acquisition and acquisitions made by American Water Services.
The Citizens acquisition intangible assets amounted to $59,813
and include contracts with a weighted-average useful life of 20
years and communications site licenses with useful lives ranging
from 15-21 years. Goodwill amounting to $84,864 was recorded
with this acquisition.

The American Water Services' intangible assets are contracts
with a weighted-average useful life of approximately 12 years that
were acquired in the acquisition of Azurix North America and Azurix
Industrials Corpy that was completed on November 7, 2001 and
the acquisitiorof a former joint venture partner’s interest in EA2
Systems thaf was completed on September 20, 2001. $110,634
of the goodwill is associated with the Azurix and EA2
acqu1s1t1ons and the remaining $29,830 of goodwill is associated
with the Company’s December 31, 1999 acquisition of its joint
venture partner’s interest in AmericanAnglian Environmental Tech-
nologies. In accordance with the provisions of Financial Account-
ing Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
(see New Accounting Standards), the goodwill associated with
the Azurix and EA2 acquisitions is not being amortized and the
goodwill associated with the AmericanAnglian acquisition will no
longer be amortized after. December 31, 2001. The annual amor-
tization of the tax deductible goodwill on the AmericanAnglian
acquisition had been $1,657.
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Other Investments and Accumulated

Other Comprehensive Income

Other investments include primarily equity securities of publicly
and privately held companies. Investments in publicly traded se-
curities are classified as available for sale and are recorded in the
balance sheet at fair market value with the change in market value,
net of the tax effect, recorded as part of other comprehensive
income. The cost basis of these publicly traded securities is $10,322
and the fair value of these investments is determined using quoted
market prices. Investments in privately held companies are car-
ried at cost. The principal publicly traded investments are approxi-
mately 1,300,000 shares of Deutsche Telekom (NYSE:DT) and
50,000 shares of SIW Corp. (AMEX: SIW).

In 2002 the Company tendered approximately 2.2 million
shares of its 3.5 million shares of ITC Holding Company (ITC)
common stock. The Company tendered the shares as part of ITC's
program to repurchase its own stock. The Company acquired this
stock with the 1999 acquisition of National Enterprises Inc. (NEI)
as it was part of NEI's non-water related investments. The sale
resulted in a gain of $22,466, $13,979 after-tax, which was re-
flected in the 2002 results. This gain was offset by a loss of
$12,752, $7,989 after tax, that was also recorded in 2002 when
the Company determined that the value of three other securities
had become permanently impaired. The Company also has equity
investments in ITC Holding Company, Inc., and United States
Sugar Corporation. The cost basis of these securities, that are not
publicly traded, was $4,516 at December 31, 2002.

The compaonents of accumulated other comprehensive income
balances at December 31 are as follows:

2002 2001

Beginning balance $ 5958 $25303
Unrealized gains (losses)

on securities 1,924  (32,684)
Income taxes, net on other

comprehensive income 3,776 13,339
Foreign currency translation 241 -
Additional minimum pension liability (11,698) -
Ending balance $§ 201 S 5958

In 2002 a loss of $11,698 and related tax benefits of $4,562
were recognized when the value of the Company’s pension plan
assets decreased reflecting negative equity returns.

In 2001 a gain of $5,177, and related tax of $2,019, were
recognized on the sale of a portion of the Company's investment
in Deutsche Telekom.

Other Current Liabilities

Other current Tiabilities at December 31, 2002 and 2001 indlude
payables to banks of $36,690 and $29,076 respectively, which
represent checks issued but not presented to banks for payment,
net of the related bank balance.

Advances and Contributions in Aid of Construction

Utility subsidiaries may receive advances and contributions to fund
construction necessary to extend service to new areas. As deter-
mined by the regulatory authorities, advances for construction
are refundable for limited periods of time as new customers be-
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gin to receive service. Amounts which are no longer refundable
are reclassified to contributions in aid of construction. Utility plant
funded by advances and contributions is excluded from rate base
and is generally not depreciated for rate making purposes. Gener-
ally, advances and contributions received during the period Janu-
ary 1, 1987 through June 12, 1996 have been included in taxable
income and the related property is depreciable for tax purposes.
As a result of a tax law change, advances and contributions re-
ceived subsequent to June 12, 1996 are excluded from taxable
income and the related property is not depreciable for tax pur-
poses.

On January 11, 2001 the Internal Revenue Service issued regu-
lations that excduded lateral service lines from its definition of
contributions in aid of construction that are not included in tax-
able income. These customer connection fees are defined as the
cost of installing a connection or service line from the Company’s
main lines to the lines owned by the customer. The regulations
were effective immediately, and the Company is now paying tax
on money or property received for these connections.

Recognition of Revenues

Revenues of the regulated utility subsidiaries include amounts
billed to customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based
on estimated usage from the date of the latest meter reading to
the end of the accounting period.

Revenue from American Water Services' residuals management,
underground infrastructure development, engineering and large
multi-year operations and maintenance contracts are recognized
over the contract term based on the estimated percentage of ser-
vices provided during the period compared to the total estimated
services to be provided over the entire contract. Losses on con-
tracts are recognized during the period in which the Toss first be-
comes known. Revenue recognized in excess of billings on service
contracts are recorded as unbilled revenue. Billings in excess of
revenues recognized on service contracts are recorded as a liabil-
ity on the Company’s balance sheet until the above revenue rec-
ognition criteria are met. Changes in contract performance and
related estimated contract profitability may result in revisions to
costs and revenues and are recognized in the period in which revi-
sions are determined. For other water and wastewater treatment
contracts and for time and material contracts, revenue is recog-
nized as services are provided.

Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries participate in a consolidated
federal income tax return for U.S. tax purposes. Members of the
consolidated group are charged with the amount of federal in-
come tax expense determined as if they filed separate returns,
except that the tax rate applicable to the consolidated group is
applied to separate company taxable income and the benefit of
net operating losses, principally at the parent company level, is
recognized currently.

Certain income and expense items are accounted for in differ-
ent time periods for financial reporting than for income tax re-
porting purposes. Deferred income taxes have been provided on
the difference between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
the amounts at which they are carried in the financial statements.
These deferred income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates to

be in effect when such temporary differences are expected to re-
verse. The utility subsidiaries also recognize regulatory assets and
liabilities for the effect on revenues expected to be realized as the
tax effects of temporary differences previously flowed through to
customers reverse.

Investment tax credits have been deferred by the utility sub-
sidiaries and are being amortized to income over the average es-
timated service lives of the related assets.

Allowance For Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC)
AFUDC s a non-cash credit to income with a corresponding charge
to utility plant which represents the cost of borrowed funds and a
return on equity funds devoted to plant under construction. The
utility subsidiaries record AFUDC to the extent permitted by the
regulatory authorities.

Environmental Costs

Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations or
provide a future benefit are expensed or capitalized as appropri-
ate. Remediation costs that relate to an existing condition caused
by past operations are accrued when it is probable that these costs
will be incurred and can be reasonably estimated.

Asset Impairment

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets held
and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets, on a separate entity basis, may not be re-
coverable. If the sum of the future cash flows expected to result
from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition is less
than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is rec-
ognized. Measurement of an impairment loss is based on the fair
value of the assets. A regulatory asset is charged to earnings if
and when future recovery in rates of that asset is no longer prob-
able. Indefinite lived intangible assets are reviewed for impair-
ment annually or whenever events occur indicating the carrying
value may be impaired.

Earnings Per Share

The average number of shares used to calculate diluted earnings
per share includes 0 and 14,142 of potential common shares issu-
able in connection with the long-term incentive program in 2002
and 2001 respectively, and 291,679 and 163,414 potential com-
mon shares for employee stock options in 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively (see Note 11).

New Accounting Standards

= Business Combinations/ Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business
Combinations” (SFAS 141) and No. 142, "Goodwill and Other In-
tangible Assets” (SFAS 142), collectively referred to as the “Stan-
dards” SFAS 141 supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion
(APB) No. 16, "Business Combinations”. The provisions of SFAS
141 (1) require that the purchase method of accounting be used
for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, (2)
provide specific criteria for the initial recognition and measure-
ment of intangible assets apart from goodwill, and (3) require
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that unamortized negative goodwill be written off immediately
as an extraordinary gain instead of being deferred and amortized.
SFAS 141 also requires that upon adoption of SFAS 142 the Com-
pany redassify the carrying amounts of certain intangible assets
into or out of goodwill, based on certain criteria. SFAS 142 super-
sedes APB 17, “Intangible Assets”, and is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS 142 primarily addresses
the accounting for goodwill and intangible assets subsequent to
their initial recognition. The provisions of SFAS 142 (1) prohibit
the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible as-
sets, (2) require that goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles as-
sets be tested annually for impairment (and in interim periods if
certain events occur indicating that the carrying value of good-
will and/or indefinite-lived intangible assets may be impaired),
(3) require that reporting units be identified for the purpose of
assessing potential future impairments of goodwill, and (4) re-
move the forty-year limitation on the amortization period of in-
tangible assets that have finite lives. The Company adopted the
provisions of the Standards on January 1, 2002.

The Standards require the excess of the fair values of acquired
net assets over cost recorded in the statement of financial posi-
tion to be recognized as the effect of a change in accounting prin-
ciple as of the date SFAS 141 is initially applied in its entirety. In
compliance with this transition requirement the Company recog-
nized a $2,679 gain on January 1, 2002.

During 2002 the Company completed the process of making
the determinations as to what its reporting units are and what
amounts of goodwill, intangible assets, other assets and liabili-
ties should be allocated to those reporting units as of January 1,
2002. The Company’s reporting units are the separate regulated
utility subsidiaries (incduding the five New England subsidiaries
that were sold on April 25, 2002) and unregulated services re-
porting units at American Water Resources and American Water
Services. The Company'’s carrying value of goodwill at January 1,
2002 was $139,167, of which $23,394 was assigned to various
regulated subsidiaries and $115,773 was assigned to American
Water Services. Intangible assets with an assigned value of
$23,400 (subsequently adjusted to $6,800 in 2002) were man-
agement contracts at American Water Services that have a finite
life.

A transitional impairment test for goodwill as of January 1,
2002 was completed by the Company. Income and market ap-
proaches were used for reporting unit valuations. The methodolo-
gies used to implement the market approach were the market
multiples methodology, which results in an indication of value by
comparing the business being valued to guideline publicly traded
companies, and the similar transactions methodology, which de-
velops an indication of value based on prices paid for comparable
businesses. The methodology used to implement the income ap-
proach was the capitalized income approach that bases the value
of an asset on the future cash flows attributable to that asset.
Based on these approaches the Company determined that good-
will is not currently impaired. The Company performed required
annual impairment tests in the fourth quarter after the long-term
planning process was completed.
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The Company is no longer recording $1,657 of annual tax de-
ductible amortization relating to the goodwill associated with the
1999 acquisition of its joint venture partner's interest in
AmericanAnglian Environmental Technologies. The remainder of
the goodwill and intangible assets at January 1, 2002 were not
being amortized because they are related to business combina-
tions completed after the July 1, 2001 effective date of SFAS 141
or the goodwill was related to acquisitions that occurred prior to
October 31, 1970 that was not being amortized because in the
opinion of management there had been no diminution in value.

= Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board is-
sued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’'s Accounting and Disclo-
sure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees
of Indebtedness of Others, an Interpretation of FASB Statements
No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34.”
FIN 45 dlarifies that upon issuance of certain types of guarantees,
the guarantor must recognize an initial liability for the fair value
of the obligation it assumes under the guarantee. FIN 45 does
not provide detailed guidance on the offsetting entry to be made
when recognizing.the liability or on measuring the obligation sub-
sequent to its initial recognition. The offsetting entry will be de-
pendent upon the circumstances under which the guarantee is
issued, and the initial liability should typically be reduced as the
guarantor is released from risk under the guarantee. FIN 45 also
requires a guarantor to make significant new disclosures for virtu-
ally all guarantees. The provisions relating to the initial recogni-
tion and measurement of guarantee obligations must be applied
on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after De-
cember 31, 2002. The Company adopted FIN 45 effective Janu-
ary 1, 2003. The initial adoption did not have an impact on the
Company. However, FIN 45 may impact the accounting treatment
of future guarantee obligations. The disclosure provisions are ef-
Tective for financial statements of interim and annual periods end-
ing after December 15, 2002. See Note 19 for disclosure of guar-
antees and other-assurances existing as of December 31, 2002.

Reclassification
Certain reclassifications have been made to conform previously
reported data to the current presentation.

Note 3: Merger with RWE Aktiengesellschaft

On September 16, 2001 the Company entered into an Agreement
and Plan of Merger (the "Agreement”) with RWE Aktiengesellschaft
(“RWE") and Thames Water Aqua Holdings GmbH (“Thames”),
which is RWE's holding company for its global water business, to
merge with a subsidiary of RWE and become a wholly owned in-
direct subsidiary of RWE. On January 10, 2003 Apollo Acquisition
Company, a Delaware corporation (“Sub”), merged (the “Merger”)
with and into the Company, pursuant to the Agreement, with the
Company surviving the Merger. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement,
each issued and outstanding share of common stock, par value
$1.25 per share, of the Company has been canceled and converted
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into the right to receive $46.00 in cash without interest, plus a
stub period dividend of $0.2153333 per share. As a result of the
Merger, the Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of
Thames Water Aqua US Holdings, Inc., a wholly owned subsid-
iary of Thames.

The Company’s Proxy Statement filed on Schedule 14A for the
special meeting of stockholders approving the Merger, which was
first mailed to shareholders of the Company on or about Decem-
ber 7, 2001, sets forth certain information regarding RWE, Thames
and Sub. RWE obtained the approximately $4.6 billion required
to fund the merger consideration and pay related fees and ex-
penses from (a) the capital and money markets and (b) internally
available funds.

RWE is a global multi-utility company that does business
through its subsidiaries and affiliates in over 120 countries. Its
core businesses are electricity, gas, water, and waste and recy-
ding.

The transaction was approved at a special meeting of the stock-
holders of American Water Works Company on January 17, 2002.

During 2002 and 2001 the Company recorded charges of
$6,439 and $9,992, reflecting costs incurred in connection with
the merger. The merger related costs have been reported on a
separate line in the consolidated statement of income and com-
prehensive income.

On November 6, 2001 the Company and its financing subsid-
fary, American Water Capital Corp. ("AWCC"), executed a Note
Purchase Agreement with RWE for up to $1.2 billion in senior
unsecured notes at an interest rate of 4.92%. The notes were pur-
chased at par by RWE and mature on November 6, 2006. The
Company and its subsidiaries used the proceeds from the sale of
the notes to acquire the common stock of Azurix North America
and Azurix Industrials, to fund the acquisition of the water and
wastewater assets of Citizens Communications Company and to
reduce outstanding short-term debt. Closing occurred in two
tranches, one on November 6, 2001 in the amount of $298,500
and another on January 14, 2002 in the amount of $900,000.

On June 12, 2002 the Company and AWCC executed a Note
Purchase Agreement with RWE for $320,000 in senior unsecured
notes. The agreement calls for up to $170,000 in notes at an in-
terest rate of 5.65% maturing on June 12, 2007 and $150,000 in
notes at a floating interest rate based on LIBOR rates plus 20 ba-
sis points maturing on June 26, 2003. Closing occurred on $40,000
of the 5.65% senior notes on June 12, 2002 and dlosing on the
remaining $130,000 of 5.65% notes took place on September
30, 2002. The closing on the $150,000 of floating rate notes took
place on December 18, 2002. AWCC used the proceeds from this
issuance to pay down maturing commercial paper.

Note 4: Acquisitions and Divestitures

Water and Wastewater Assets of

Citizens Communications Company

On January 15, 2002 the Company and its subsidiaries completed
their acquisition of all of the water and wastewater assets of Citi-

zens Communications Company (NYSE: CZN) for $859,065 in cash
and $120,685 of assumed liabilities. The purchase price is subject
to adjustment upon the completion of an audited closing state-
ment of net assets. At this time the Company expects a minor
decrease in the purchase price. The acquired operations provide
water and wastewater service to approximately 300,000 custom-
ers in Arizona, California, Illinois, Indiana, Ohio and Pennsylva-
nia. Citizens also had developed a water supply project in Illinois
with the possibility of additional wholesale customers along the
pipeline. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, the op-
erations had revenues of $119,000.

At December 31, 2002, $84,864 and $59,813 were recorded
as goodwill and intangibles, respectively, in connection with this
transaction. A value of $54,538 was assigned to intangible assets
with an indefinite life, and $5,275 of value was assigned to intan-
gible assets with lives ranging from 15 to 21 years.

The purchase price for these assets was consistent with the
multiples paid in other similar transactions. Regulatory and stra-
tegic considerations contributed to a purchase price that resulted
in the recognition of goodwill. The assets reside in progressive
requlatory environments where the Company currently operates
and broadens the geographic diversity of the Company’s total
operations. The indusion of the acquired customers in California
and Arizona increases the Company’s customers in the Western
United States to 10% of its total customer base. With the acquisi-
tion, the Company becomes one of the principal water purveyors
in the Phoenix area and strengthens its competitive position for
the privatization opportunities in this rapidly growing region and
the other states included in the acquisition footprint.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

January 15, 2002
Current assets $ 13,928
Property, plant, and equipment 811,710
Other long-term assets 9,435
Intangible assets 59,813
Goodwill 84,864
Total assets acquired 979,750
Current liabilities (3,890)
Long-term debt (90,399)
Other long term liabilities (26,396)
Total liabilities assumed (120,685)
Net assets acquired $ 859,065

Other 2002 Acquisitions

During 2002, the Company acquired eight other local water and
wastewater utilities for a total cost of $31,935, which was paid
primarily in cash. These systems provide water and wastewater
service to 29,000 customers in Missouri, Indiana, Pennsylvania,
Kentucky and New Mexico. There were no goodwill or intangible
assets recognized in these transactions.
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Divestiture of New England Operations

On August 30, 2001, Kelda Group plc and the Company jointly
announced that they had reached an agreement whereby Kelda's
Aguarion Company would acquire the Company’s New England
operations. On April 25, 2002 the Company completed the dives-
titure with a transaction price of approximately $118,000 plus
the assumption of $115,000 in debt. An $18,600 after-tax gain
was reflected in 2002 results.

The utility operations acquired by Aquarion serve a total of
65,000 customers and had revenues of $51,000 in 2001. A fi-
nance subsidiary of the Company, which owned and leased cer-
tain assets to its affiliated operating company in Massachusetts,
was also acquired by Aquarion as part of the transaction.

Azurix North America And Azurix Industrials

On November 7, 2001 the Company completed its acquisition of
Azurix North America Corp. and Azurix Industrials Corp. for
$153,300in cash and assumption of $6,500 of debt. Azurix North
America and Azurix Industrials were wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Azurix Corp. and provide a range of water and wastewater ser-
vices, including operations and maintenance, engineering, car-
bon regeneration, underground infrastructure rehabilitation and
residuals management. Azurix North America and Azurix Industri-
als had revenues totaling approximately $134,000 in 2001.

This transaction enables the Company to offer a comprehen-
sive portfolio of quality water management services to municipal
and industrial customers. The acquisition also expands the
Company's presence into the southeastern and northwestern U.S.
and three Canadian provinces.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

November 7, 2001

Current assets $ 44,900
Property, plant, and equipment 46,700
Other long-term assets 4,700
Intangible assets 22,300
Goodwil 73,800

Total assets acquired 192,400
Current liabilities (32,600)
Long-term debt (6,500)

Total liabilities assumed (39.100)
Net assets acquired $153,300

Other 2001 Acquisitions

During 2001, the Company acquired eight other local water and
wastewater utilities for a total cost of $55,900, which was paid
primarily in cash. These systems provide water and wastewater
service to 20,000 customers in Missouri, Indiana, Pennsylvania
and Kentucky. There were no goodwill or intangible assets recog-
nized in these transactions.
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Divestiture of Town of Salisbury Massachusetts Operating
System

On September 28, 2001 the Company completed the sale under
threat of condemnation of its Salisbury Water Supply Company's
operating system to the Town of Salishury, Massachusetts for
$11,500 in cash plus outstanding accounts receivables. The
Salisbury system serves 3,000 customers and had annual revenues
of $1,900.

Note 5: Acquired Intangible Assets
As of December 31, 2002
Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible assets
O&M contracts $11,100 $(2,068)
Communication site licenses 975 (a5)
Total $12,075 $(2,113)
Unamortized intangible assets
Franchise rights $54,538
Estimated amortization expense:
For year ended 12/31/03 $ 1,335
For year ended 12/31/04 $ L1634
For year ended 12/31/05 $ 850
For year ended 12/31/06 $ 768
For year ended 12/31/07 $ 671
Note 6: Goodwill
Regulated
Utility  Unregulated
Services Services Total
Balance as of December 31, 2001 § 20,715  $115.773  5136.488
Cumulative effect of change .
in accounting principle 2,679 - 2,679
Balance as of January 1, 2002 23,394 115,773 139,167
Goodwill acquired during year 84,864 - 84,864
Adjust purchase accounting - 29,321 29,321

Balance as of December 31, 2002 $108,258 $145,094 $253,352

Note 7: Utility Plant
The components of utility plant by category at December 31 are
as follows:

2002 2001

Water plant
Sources of supply $ 339,993 $ 301,875
Treatment and pumping 1,644,198 1,521,214
Transmission and distribution 3,561,441 3,106,076
Services, meters and fire hydrants 1,281,567 1,126,589
General structures and equipment 592,450 564,664
Wastewater plant 296,566 100,586
Construction work in progress 190,330 156,029
‘ 7,906,545 6,877,033
Less-accumulated depreciation 1,728,228 1418,124
$6,178,317 $5,458,909
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Note 8: Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
Lntil September 17, 2001 the Company's Dividend Reinvestment

and Stock Purchase Plan provided for optional cash purchases of

newly issued common stock of the Company. In addition to per-

mitting record holders of common stock to have all or part of their

dividends automatically reinvested in additional shares of com-

mon stock, the plan permitted stockholders to purchase up to five

thousand dellars of common stock each month directly from the

Company. This plan was suspended in connection with the antici-

pated merger with RWE.

Note 9: Shareholders Rights Plan

On June 1, 2000 the Company announced that it had amended
its Shareholder Rights Agreement. The Agreement provides for
certain consequences if more than a stated percentage of the
Company’s common stock is acquired by any person or greup of
persons without prior consent of the Company’s Board of Direc-
tors. The amendment lowered that percentage, and the percent-
age of ownership that triggers the dilutive effect of the rights
issued under the Agreement, to 10% of the Company’s outstand-
ing common shares.

Each Right under the amended plan entitles shareholders to
buy one share of the Company's common stock at an exercise
price of $150. Fach Right entitles its holder to purchase, at the
Right's then-current evercise price, shares of the Company’s com-
mon stock, or a number of shares of an acquiring company’s stock,
which would have a market value of two times the exercise price.
The Rights become exercisable if there is a public announcement
that a person or group acquires, or commences a tender offer to
acquire, 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company.
The Rights also become exercisable if the Company is acquired in
a merger or 3 person or group acquires 10% or more of the out-
standing shares of the Company.

The Rights are redeemahle, in whole, but not in part, by the
Company at a price of $.0005 per Right under certain circum-
stances. The Rights do not have voting or dividend rights and,
until they become exercisable, have no dilutive effect on the earn-
ings per share of the Company.

In accordance with the RWE merger agreement, as of Septem-
ber 16, 2001, the Company amended the rights agreement to
provide that none of the approval, execution, delivery or perfor-
mance of the merger agreement or the voting agreement or the
completion of the transactions contemplated thereby will cause
the rights under the rights agreement to be adjusted or become
exercisable. The amendment also provides that the rights will ter-
minate immediately prior to the completion of the merger.

Note 10: Employee Benefits

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company maintains noncontributory defined benefit pension
plans covering substantially all associates employed in its requ-
lated ulility and shared services operations. Benefits under the
plans are based on the associate’s years of service and compensa-
tion. The Company's funding policy is to contribute at least the
minimum amount required by the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, Pension plan assets are invested in a number
of investments including equity mutual funds, United States Gov-
ernment securities, quaranteed interest contracts with a major
insurance company and publicly traded bonds.

Pension expense in excess of the amount contributed to the
pension plans is deferred by certain regulated subsidiaries pend-
ing future recovery in rates charged for water services as contribu-
tions are made to the plans (see Regulatory Assets in Note 2).

The Company also has several unfunded noncontributory
supplemental non-qualified pension plans that provide additional
retirement benefits to certain associates of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Company maintains postretirement benefit plans provid-
ing varying levels of medical and life insurance to eligible retir-
ees. The adoption of a new accounting standard for other
postretirement benefits caused a transition obligation of $143,391
at January 1, 1993 which is being amortized over 20 years. The
Company’s policy is to fund postretirement benefit costs accrued.
Plan assets are invested in equity and bond mutual funds.
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Other
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2002 2001 2002 2001

Change in benefit obﬁgation

Benefit obligation
at January 1

Service cost

Interest cost

Plan participants’
contributions

Amendments

Actuarial (gain) loss

$476,759 $423463 $260,114 $ 240,193
18,011 15,963 8,178 7391
34,805 32,663 18,734 17,293

- - 988 916
(338) 325 (741)  (10,389)
40,345 13,954 27329 15734

Acquisitions (divestitures) (10,529) - (5.675) -
Benefits paid (11,136) (9,609) (12,945) (11.024)
Benefit obligation

at December 31 $547,917 § 476,759 $295,982 $ 260,114

Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan

assets at January 1
Actual return on

$365,930 $380,773 $151,077 $ 150,347

plan assets (26,560)  (6.406) (11,946)  (7,369)
Employer contribution 7474 1172 19,449 18,207
Plan participants’

contributions - - 988 916
Acquisitions (divestitures) (8,664) - (4,134) -
Benefits paid (11,136) (9,609) (12,945) (11,024)
Fair value of plan assets

at December 31 $327,044 $365,930 $142,489 $ 151,077

Funded status at
December 31

Unrecognized net transition

obligation (asset)
Unrecognized prior

service cost
Unrecognized net

actuarial (gain) loss

$(220,874) $(110,829) $(153,494) $(109,037)
(134) (1.394) 63,708 75,044
52712 6184 (8) (4.389)

141,911 43,684 75,609 24,574

Net amount recognized

$(73,825) $ (62,355) $(14,185) S (13,808)

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost
Accrued benefit liability

Additional minimum liability

Intangible asset
Accumulated other

comprehensive income

$ 4225 3128 -$ -
(74,246) (62,667) (14,185) (13,808)

(16,550)  (945) - -
4,851 945 - -
11,698 - - -

Net amount recognized

$(73,825) $ (62,355) $(14,185) $(13,808)

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the accumulated benefit
obligation exceeded the fair value of plan assets as follows:

Qualified plans

Projected benefit
obligation

Accumulated benefit
obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Nongqualified plans

Projected benefit
obligation

Accumulated benefit
obligation

Fair value of plan assets

A

$520,506

$395,131
$327,044

$ 27411 § 23,709

$ 21,847 $ 19,130
$ 0 0

2002 2001
Components of net periodic
pension benefit cost
Service cost $18,011 $15,963
Interest cost 34,805 32,663
Expected return on plan assets (32,008) (33,921)

Amortization of transition asset (1,381) (1,161)

Amortization of prior

service cost 780 1,496
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss 512 (1,927)
Net periodic pension benefit cost $20,719 $13,113
Components of net periodic other

postretirement benefit cost
Service cost $ 8,178 $ 7391
Interest cost 18,734 17,293
Expected return on plan assets (13,004) (12,865)
Amortization of transition obligation 6,463 6,637
Amortization of prior service cost - 248
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss (3) (564)
Net periodic other

postretirement benefit cost $20,368 $18,140

Other
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2002 2001 2002 2001
Weighted-average assumptions
as of December 31
Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 6.75% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets ~ 9.00%  9.00% 8.30%  8.30%
Rate of compensation increase  4.75% 475% 4.75% 475%

The health care cost trend rate, used to calculate the Company’s
cost and obligation for postretirement health care benefits, is a
9.0% annual rate in 2003 that is assumed to decrease gradually
to a 5.0% annual rate in 2007 and remain at that level thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect
on the amounts reported for the other postretirement benefit plan.
A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend
rates would have the following effects:

One-Percentage-
Point Decrease

One-Percentage-
Point Increase

Effect on total of service and

interest cost components $ 4,795 $ (4,193)
Effect on other postretirement
benefit obligation $37438 $(34,688)
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Savings Plans for Employees

The Company maintains 401(k) savings plans that allows associ-
ates to save for retirement on a tax-deferred basis. Compensation
expense associated with these savings plans was $3,671in 2002,
and $3,836 in 2001.

Included in the above expenses were the Company's match-
ing contributions to the primary savings plan totaling $3,097 for
2002 and $3,398 for 2001 that are invested in a fund of Com-
pany common stock.

Employees’ Stock Ownership Plan

The Company maintains an Employees’ Stock Ownership Plan ,
which provides for beneficial ownership of Company common stock
by associates who are not incdluded in a bargaining unit. Each par-
ticipating associate can elect to contribute an amount that does
not exceed 2% of their wages. In addition to the associate’s par-
ticipation, the Company makes a contribution equivalent to
1/2% of each participant’s qualified compensation, and matches
100% of the contribution by each participant. The Company re-
corded as an expense contributions of $1,782 for 2002 and 51,721
for 2001 that it made to the plan.

Note 11: Stock-Based Compensation

In May 2000 the Company's shareholders approved the 2000 Stock
Award and Incentive Plan (2000 Plan). The Plan replaced the
Company'’s previous Long-Term Performance-Based Incentive Plan
(Previous Plan) which had been in effect since 1994. Under the
Previous Plan, awards could be paid in the form of cash, restricted
shares of common stock, or a combination of both. The 2000.Plan
allows the Company to continue to grant long-term performance-
based awards similar to those that could be paid under the Previ-
ous Plan, and also authorizes a broad range of other awards, in-
cduding options, reload options, deferred stock, performance
awards, stock appreciation rights and other stock-based awards,
as well as cash-based awards. Up to 4,276,551 shares of common
stock may be issued under the 2000 Plan, of which approximately
3,300,000 shares were available to be granted at December 31,
2002.

Stock Options

In May 2000 the Board of Directors approved the issuance of non-
qualified stock options to executives and other key associates as
permitted under the 2000 Plan. Under this plan the options gen-
erally are granted at prices not less than the market value of the
stock at the date of grant, become exercisable ratably over a three-
year period beginning one-year from the date of grant, and ex-
pire ten years from the date of grant. The options vested immedi-
ately upon the completion of the Merger on January 10, 2003
(see Note 3). Shortly after the completion of the Merger, total
options payments were made amounting to $4,863. The remain-
ing vested options of $12,967 were deferred by participants.

The following table summarizes information about options for
the years ended December 31:

2002 2001
Weighted- Weighted-
Options to Average Options to Average
Purchase Exercise Purchase Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at
beginning of year ~ 895,751 $23.66 781,631 $22.58

Granted 25,714 $43.80 163,892 28.67
Exercised (97,280) $23.63 (42,184) 22.56
Cancelled/Expired (4,200) $31.09 (7.588) 25.91
Outstanding at

end of year 819,985 $24.26 895,751 $23.66
Exercisable at

year end 473,009 $23.31 273,025 $22.80

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock
options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Weighted-  Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Exercise Number  Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Prices  Qutstanding Life Price  Exercisable Price

$22.56 655,642 7.2 $§22.58 418,842 $22.58

26.84 134,179 79 28.48 52,683 28.93

31.32 4,450 8.3 31.42 1484 3142
35.79 to

4474 25,714 8.1 43.80 - -

Options granted under the Company’s long-term incentive pro-
gram were 25,714 and 163,892 for the three-year performance
cycles beginning on January 1, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Restricted Stock

Under the 2000 Plan and the Previous Plan, designated execu-
tives and other key associates are eligible to receive restricted stock
awards if performance cycle goals based on earnings-per-share
growth and total return to Company shareholders in comparison
to a designated peer group of companies are met. The fair value
of the restricted stock is being charged to expense over each three-
year performance cydle.
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Note 12: General Taxes

Components of general tax expense for the years presented in the
consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income are
as follows:

2002 2001
Gross receipts and franchise $ 45,105 S 42,975
Property and capitai stock 69,367 04,164
Payroll 20,588 17,273
Other general 5,942 5116

$141,002 $129,533

Note 13: Income Taxes

Components of income tax expense for the years presented in the
consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income are
as follows:

2002 2001
State Income Taxes:
Current $ 17,038 S 13,725
Deferred
Current (39) {49)
Non-current 3,675 3457

$ 20,674 S 17133

Federal Income Taxes:

Current $ 46,191 S 69,350
Deferred
Current (404) 36
Nonr-current 58,019 25,333
Amortization of defarred
investment tax credits (1,476) £1,539)

$102,330 S 93,191

Areconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory federal
income tax rate to actual income tax expense is as follows:

2002 2001
Income tax at statutory rate $ 93,586 5 95132
Increases {decreases)
resulting from --
State taxes, net of
federal taxes 13,438 11,136
Flow through differences 2,640 1,359
Amortization of investment
tax credits {1,476) (1.539)
Subsidiary preferred
dividends 952 1,046
Other, net 13,864 3,190

Actual income tax expense $123,604 $110,324
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The following fablo provides the comporents of the net de
ferred tax lability al December 31.

2002 2001
Deferred Tax Assets:
Advances and coniributio, $ 61,622 5 %31y
Deferred investment fax credits 13,438 {2933
Postretirernent henefirs 1,655 R
Pension benefits 5,208 326y
Other 31,870 39601
113,791 126,153
Deferred Tax Liabhilities:
Utihty plant, principally due
to depreciation differences 614,213 502,614
[ncome taxes recoveranle
inrough rates 48,240 44,390
Deferred security costs 11,994 2493
Deferred financial and custormer
service costs 5,139 5050
Other comprehensive income 4,324 3,534

Qther 76,872 SERET

760,842 750,602

- facilities and equipment. Rental expenses under operating

${647.051) S {624 447

No material valuation allowancas were required on deferred
tax assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 14: Leases
The Company has entered into cperating 'eases involuing rart:

ases

were $ 14,641 for 2002 and $§17.579 for 2001. Capital leases cur-
rently in effect are not significant.

At December 31, 2002, the minimum annual future rental com-
mitment under operating leases that have initial or remaining
noncancellable lease terms in excess of one year are $14.001 in
2003, 511,977 in 2004, $9.679in 2005, 56,531 in 2006, $4,207
in 2007 and $8,606 thereafter.

Note 15: Revolving Credit Agreements
In June 2000 the Company completed the formation of a new
wholly owned subsidiary, American Water Capital Corp. ("AWCC"),
a special purpose corporation that serves as the primary funding
vehicle for American Water Works Company and its requlated sub-
sidiaries. American Water Works has fully and unconditionally guar
anteed the securities of AWCC. -
AWCC has a 364-day $500,000 revolving credit agreement with
a group of eleven domestic and international banks. The renewal
date for this facility is July 31, 2003. Borrowing under the revolv-
ing credit line, at thp Company's option, bears interest at a rate
based upon either a defined base rate or the London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR). The Company pays a commitment fee of
12.5 basis points on the entire amount of the commitment
(whether borrowed or not borrowed) and a usage fee of 50 basis
points (62.5 basis points if borrowings exceed $165,000). These
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fees may fhuctuate based upon the Company’s current bond rat-
ing. Under the credit agreement, the Company must maintain
cartain finandal ratios and meet certain balanca sheet tests. No
compensating balances are required under the agreement,

AWCC had $233,708 and $395,561 outstanding under com-
mercial pager borrowings at December 31, 2002 and 2001, re-
spectively, all of which was dassified as short-term debt. AWCC's
revolving credit agreement supporis these barrowings. Commer-
¢ial paper borrowings al December 31, 2002 and 2001 had
weiginted-average interest rates of 1.55% and 2 35%, respectively.

Al December 31, 2002 and 2001, there was $161,004 and
$18.522 of shoit-term debt outstanding, respectively. The
weighted average interest rate on these horrowings was 1.67%
and 3 52%, respectively.

The tolal of the unused tines of wedit and comnieraal paper
horowings at Derember 312002 was $276,292.

Note 16: Segment Information

The Cempany has identified Regulated Utitity Services and Unrequ-
lated Services ds its two reportable segments. The Company has
organized ils business based upon the products and services pro-
vided anc based-upon similai environments. The results of opera-
tions reperted by segment include costs allocated by American Water
Warks Service Conwpany. The “other items” include corporate costs

of American Water Works Company and intersegment eliminations.

The Regulated Utility Services segment includes subsidiaries
that provide water and wastewater to customers in the United
States of America. All of these companies are subject to both fed-
eral and state requlation regarding the quality of water distrib-
uted and the discharge of waste residuals. With the exception of
one company that serves 4,000 customers, the utility subsidiaries
also function under economic regulations prescribed by state requ-
latory commissions. A subsidiary which owns a treatment plant in
Massachusetts that is leased to an affiliated utility subsidiary is
also included in this segment.

The Unregulated Services segment indudes American Water
Services and its subsidiaries and American Water Resources. Ameri-
can Water Services provides a broad range of water and wastewa-
ter services including operations and maintenance, residuals man-
agement, underground infrastructure development and engineer-
ing throughout the U.S. and Canada American Water Resources
currently offers a consumer protection program for residential water
service lines and a service to regenerate granular activated carbon
that is used by water utilities in the filtration process. Intersegment
revenues include carbon regeneration services and leased equip-
ment and office space.

The following table presents information about the Company's
reportable segments:

Regulated
Uility Unrequlated Other

Services Services ltems Consolidated

2002 ]
Fevanpoec fram eviemal (st 31,486,576 228,597 3 - $1,715,173
- 7,255 {7,255) -
216,369 13,759 (36) 230,112
682,596 6,498 35,702 724,796
185,164 7,237 33,894 227,295
230,063 {14,998) 1,824 267,389
172,849 (10,291} {15,494) 147,064
7,351,347 346,163 20,873 7,718,383
weabpedinea 430,345 6,037 - 456,382
ey fan eadeinad custonens 51,376,637 $62.250 4 - $1,438,887
Tntorscnment jpvenyes 6,980 (6,980) -
2 won and amortization 178,120 6,959 132 185,211
669,332 5,976 (25,768) 649,540
interest esge 173,213 1.829 17480 192,522
Incoms pefore income taxes 317,999 (2.812) (43,380} 271,807
Mot income ' 196,097 (2.362) (32,252} 161,483
Total aysels 6,316,667 313,080 (22.648) 6,607,099
365.259 15,883 i7 381,159

Caprral expenditures
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Note 17: Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Com-
pany in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instru-
ments:

Current assets and current liabilities: The carrying amount re-
ported in the balance sheet for current assets and current liabili-
ties, including revolving credit debt due to the short-term maturi-
ties and variable interest rates, approximates their fair values.

Preferred stocks with mandatory redemption requirements and
long-term debt: The fair values of the Company's preferred stacks
with mandatory redemption requirements and long-term debt are
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the
Company's current incremental financing rates for similar types of
securities.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s finan-
cial instruments at December 31 are as follows:

Carrying
2002 Amount Fair Value

Preferred stocks of subsidiaries with

mandatory redemption requirements $
Long-term debt of the Company
Long-term debt of subsidiaries

28,150 $ 28,411
297,000 309,600
3,367,789 3,681,505

Carrying
2001 Amount Fair Value

Preferred stocks of subsidiaries with

mandatory redemption requirements $ 30474 § 32,679
Long-term debt of the Company 309,000 307,907
Long-term debt of subsidiaries 2404137  2436,153

Note 18: Commitments and Contingencies

Construction programs of subsidiaries for 2003 are estimated to
cost approximately $350,000. Commitments have been made in
connection with certain construction programs.

In connection with obtaining the regulatory approvals neces-
sary to complete the Merger (see Note 3), certain state requlatory
bodies have issued orders which prohibit certain of the Company’s
regulated subsidiaries from requesting.rate increases for periods
of time not exceeding three years.

The Company is routinely involved in condemnation proceed-
ings and legal actions relating to several subsidiaries. In the opin-
ion of management, none of these matters will have a material
adverse effect, if any, on the financial position or results of op-
erations of the Company.

30

Note 19: Guarantees

The Company's lease arrangements include certain indemnifica-
tions in favor of the lessors (e.g., indemnifications for environ-
mental matters) with terms that range in duration and scope and
that are not explicitly defined. Where appropriate, an obligation
for such indemnifications is recorded as a liability. Because the
obligated amounts of these types of indemnifications often are
not explicitly stated, the overall maximum amount of the obliga-
tion under such indemnifications cannot be reasonably estimated.
As of December 31, 2002, the Company has not recorded any
liability on its financial statements in connection with these in-
demnification obligations, as it does not believe, based on infor-
mation currently available, that it is probable that any amounts
will be paid under these guarantees.

In connection with many financing transactions, the Company
engages trustees or custodial, escrow or other agents to act for
the benefit of the investors or to provide other agency services.
The Company typically provides indemnification to these agents
for any liability or expenses incurred by them in performing their
obligations. No liability is recorded for these indemnifications
because the Company believes that it is unlikely that they will be
required to perform or otherwise incur any losses associated with
these indemnification provisions.

The Company also has various guarantees in contracts entered
into in the normal course of business. These guarantees are pri-
marily in the form of indemnities that range in duration and cov-
erage and that do not explicitly state the amount of the indemni-
fication obligation. These guarantees would only result in imma-
terial increases in future costs and do not represent significant
commitments or contingent liabilities of the indebtedness of oth-
ers, To date, the Company has not made any significant payments
for these indemnification obligations. '

The Company, on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, main-
tains insurance that covers liability assumed under contract for
bodily injury and property damage. This insurance may be appli-
cable to certain obligations under the contractual arrangements
discussed above.
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American Water Contact Information

Corporate Office:
American Water

1025 Laurel Oak Road
Voorhees, NJ 08043
(856) 346-8200

Products and Services:
American Water Services
10000 Sagemore Drive
Marlton, NJ 08053

(856) 596-3600

Customer Information:
Alton Call Center

1410 Discovery Parkway
Alton, IL 62002

(618) 433-4001

Toll Free: (800) 652-6987

Investor Information:
American Water

1025 Laurel Oak Road
Voorhees, NJ 08043
(856) 346-8207
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